NON-CONFIDENTIAL
BOROUGH OF TAMWORTH

CABINET

10 March 2021

A meeting of the CABINET will be held on Thursday, 18th March, 2021, 6.00 pm in
Online Meeting

AGENDA

NON CONFIDENTIAL

1 Apologies for Absence
Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 10)
3 Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-pecuniary)
in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting.

When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in respect of
which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of such interest.
Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary
interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.

4 Question Time:

To answer questions from members of the public pursuant to Executive
Procedure Rule No. 13

5 Matters Referred to the Cabinet in Accordance with the Overview and
Scrutiny Procedure Rules

6  Corporate Plan 2019-22 (2021 Update) (Pages 11 - 42)
(Report of the Leader of the Council)



Yours faithfully

Chief Executive

Access arrangements

If you have any particular access requirements when attending the meeting, please contact
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk. We can
then endeavour to ensure that any particular requirements you may have are catered for.

Filming of Meetings

The public part of this meeting may be filmed and broadcast. Please refer to the Council’s
Protocol on Filming, Videoing, Photography and Audio Recording at Council meetings which can
be found here for further information.

The Protocol requires that no members of the public are to be deliberately filmed. Where
possible, an area in the meeting room will be set aside for videoing, this is normally from the front
of the public gallery. This aims to allow filming to be carried out whilst minimising the risk of the
public being accidentally filmed.

If a member of the public is particularly concerned about accidental filming, please consider the
location of any cameras when selecting a seat.

FAQs

For further information about the Council’s Committee arrangements please see the FAQ page
here

To Councillors: J Oates, R Pritchard, J Chesworth, D Cook, M Cook and S Doyle.


mailto:democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/councillors_docs/TBC-Filming-Protocol.docx
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council-meetings-faqs

Agenda Item 2

& <P
3 SUATAUAUANANA
Ulnnnunz‘

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

CABINET
HELD ON 18th FEBRUARY 2021

PRESENT: Councillor D Cook (Chair), Councillors R Pritchard (Vice-Chair),
J Chesworth, M Cook, S Doyle and J Oates

The following officers were present: Andrew Barratt (Chief Executive), Anica
Goodwin (Executive Director Organisation), Rob Barnes (Executive Director
Communities), Stefan Garner (Executive Director Finance), Anna Miller
(Assistant Director — Growth & Regeneration), Joanne Sands (Assistant Director
Partnerships), Rob Holder (Consultant), Jo Hutchison (Democratic Services,
Scrutiny and Elections Officer), Jodie Small (Legal, Democratic and Corporate
Support Assistant) and Adam Deakin (Technical Infrastructure Engineer)

The following Councillors were in attendance:
Councillor R Ford and Councillor T Jay.

88 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting of Cabinet held on 4™ February 2021 were
approved as a correct record.

(Moved by Councillor R Pritchard and seconded by Councillor J Chesworth)
89 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no Declarations of Interest.
90 QUESTION TIME:

None.

91 MATTERS REFERRED TO THE EXECUTIVE (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE OR BY THE COUNCIL)

Cabinet received the Report of the Chairs of the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny and
the Corporate Scrutiny Committee which updated Cabinet and included the
recommendations to it following consideration of matters by the Scrutiny
Committees.

1
Page 3



92

Cabinet 18 February 2021

The Chair invited Councillor R Ford, the Chair of the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny
Committee to present the recommendations on the Green agenda item. The
recommendations were that:

1. A working group be set up comprising the responsible Portfolio Holder,
Chair of the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee and a member of the
Opposition to review the contents of any report produced to help
understand the council’s baseline carbon footprint.

2. A commitment be made to engage with members of the public regarding
the green agenda, seeking their views and input on the contents of any
baseline report produced.

The Chair invited Councillor Ford to remain at the meeting whilst Cabinet
considered the Climate Change Declaration update item which would then further
consider the scrutiny recommendations.

The Chair invited Councillor T Jay, the Chair of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee
to present the recommendations on the Quarterly Performance Report, Quarter 3.
Councillor Jay reported that the Corporate Scrutiny Committee had received the
performance update and financial health check for Quarter 3 at its meeting on 3
February 2021 and the Committee recommended to Cabinet that Cabinet be
advised of the areas where additional information had been sought by the
Committee, in the form of an additional page being added to the report following
the meeting. The Chair reported that Corporate Scrutiny Committee had also
endorsed the report.

RESOLVED that:

Cabinet approved the recommendation that the areas where additional
information had been sought by the Committee be added to the report in the form
of an additional page.

(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor M Cook)

QUARTER THREE 2020/21 PERFORMANCE REPORT

Cabinet received the Quarter 3 2020/21 performance update and financial
Healthcheck. The report had been considered by Corporate Scrutiny Committee
at their meeting on 3™ February 2021. Requests for additional information were
made at that meeting and were included at Appendix D.

RESOLVED that Cabinet approved:

e the contents of this report,

e the Corporate Scrutiny Committee recommendation that Cabinet be
advised of the areas where additional information had been sought by the
Committee, in the form of an additional page being added to the report
following their meeting.

2
Page 4



93

Cabinet 18 February 2021

(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor S Doyle)

CORPORATE VISION, PRIORITIES PLAN, BUDGET & MEDIUM TERM
FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2021/22

The Leader of the Council proposed the Vision Statement, Priority Themes,
Corporate Priorities and Plans and their inclusion in the Corporate Plan.

The recommended package of budget proposals to enable the Council to agree
the:

General Fund (GF) Revenue Budget and Council Tax for 2021/22;
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget for 2021/22;

5 Year General Fund Capital Programme (2021/26);

5 Year HRA Capital Programme (2021/26);

3 Year General Fund Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) (2021/24);
and

5 Year HRA Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) (2021/26).

To comply with the requirement of the Council’s Treasury Management Policy in
reporting to Council the proposed strategy for the forthcoming year and the Local
Government Act 2003 with the reporting of the Prudential Indicators and the
requirement to prepare an annual Corporate Capital Strategy.

The Leader reported that the Council received Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL) income based on its policy for developments within the borough, 15% of the
income is set aside in reserve to fund neighbourhood projects and the balance
now stands at over £35,000. The Leader proposed an additional recommendation
as set out at 28 below.

RESOLVED
That Cabinet endorsed the following recommendations to proceed to Council for
approval:

1. the Vision Statement, Priority Themes, Corporate Priorities and Outcomes
for 2021/22 (Appendix A);

2. the proposed revisions to Service Revenue Budgets (Policy Changes)
(Appendix C);

3. the sum of £60,376 be applied from Council Tax Collection Fund surpluses
in reducing the Council Tax demand in 2021/22 (Appendix E);

4. the sum of £7,137,191 be applied to Business Rates Collection Fund deficits
in 2021/22, in part offset by a transfer from the Business Rates reserve of
£6,876,350 (Appendix E);

3
Page 5



Cabinet 18 February 2021

5.

10.
11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

that on 3™ December 2020, the Cabinet calculated the Council Tax Base
2020/21 for the whole Council area as 22,366 [ltem T in the formula in
Section 31B(3) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended
(the "Act™)];

that the Council Tax requirement for the Council’'s own purposes for 2021/22
is £4,179,982 (Appendix E);

the following amounts as calculated for the year 2021/22 in accordance with
Sections 31 to 36 of the Act:

a. £54,121,642 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act (Outgoings
excluding internal GF Recharges);

b. £49,941,660 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act (Income
excluding internal GF Recharges);

c. £4,179,982 being the amount by which the aggregate at 7(a) above
exceeds the aggregate at 7(b) above, calculated by the Council in
accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its Council Tax
requirement for the year (Item R in the formula in Section 31A(4) of the
Act);

d. £186.89 being the amount at 7(c) above (Item R), all divided by Item T
(at 5 above), calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section
31B(1) of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year;

the Council Tax level for the Borough Council for 2020/21 of £186.89 (an
increase of £5 (2.75%) on the 2020/21 level of £181.89) at Band D;

an aggregate Council Tax (comprising the respective demands of the
Borough Council, Staffordshire County Council, Office of the Police and
Crime Commissioner Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire
Fire and Rescue Authority) of £1,864.86 at Band D for 2021/22 be noted
(E1,780.17 in 2020/21) (Appendix H);

the Council Tax levels at each band for 2021/22 (Appendix H);

the sum of £206,157 be transferred from General Fund Revenue Balances
in 2021/22 (Appendix E);

the Summary General Fund Revenue Budget for 2021/22 (Appendix E);

the Provisional General Fund Budgets for 2022/23 to 2023/24, summarised
at Appendix G, as the basis for future planning;

minimum level for balances of £500k to be held for each of the General
Fund, Housing Revenue Account, General Capital Fund and Housing
Capital Fund;

Cabinet be authorised to release funding from the General Contingency
budget and that the release of funding for Specific Contingency items be
delegated to the Corporate Management Team in consultation with the
Leader of the Council;

proposed HRA Expenditure level of £14,745,710 for 2021/22 (Appendix D);

4
Page 6



94

Cabinet 18 February 2021

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.
26.

27.

28.

rents for Council House Tenants in General Accommodation for 2021/22 be
set at an average of £89.25 (2020/21 £87.93), over a 48 week rent year
(including a 1.5% increase);

rents for Council House Tenants due for 52 weeks in 2021/22 be collected
over 48 weeks;

the HRA deficit of £342,610 be financed through a transfer from Housing
Revenue Account Balances in 2021/22 (Appendix D);

the proposed 5 year General Fund Capital Programme of £30.732m, as
detailed in Appendix I to the report;

the proposed 5 year Housing Capital Programme of £33.742m, as detailed
in Appendix J to the report;

to delegate authority to Cabinet to approve/add new capital schemes to the
capital programme where grant funding is received or there is no net
additional cost to the Council;

the Treasury Management Strategy Statement, the Treasury Management
Policy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Strategy and Annual
Investment Statement 2021/22 (as detailed at Appendix N);

the Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Limits for 2021/22 to 2023/24
contained within Appendix N;

adoption of the Treasury Management Practices contained within ANNEX 8;

the detailed criteria of the Investment Strategy 2021/22 contained in the
Treasury Management Strategy within ANNEX 4; and

the Corporate Capital Strategy and associated Action Plan (as detailed at
Appendix O).

the current funding of £35,000 held in the CIL neighbourhood reserve be
released to create a budget in 2021/22 for Cabinet to allocate on a
neighbourhood project basis.

(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor R Pritchard)

CLIMATE CHANGE DECLARATION UPDATE

The Leader of the Council presented the report which:

1. updated Cabinet on progress delivering the Climate Emergency which was
declared at the Full Council meeting on the 19" November 2019; and

2. provided a road map that would meet the Council’s target of becoming net-
zero carbon for its activities by 2050 with an aspiration to achieve 2030
should the council be financially able to do so.

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

1. approved the release of contingency money to deliver Step 1 in the
approach outlined in the report;

2. approved the procurement and appointment of a specialist;

5
Page 7



95

96

97

Cabinet 18 February 2021

3. agreed that once full council had elected a new Leader, at its meeting on
23 February 2021, to take leadership on 1 March 2021, Councillor D Cook
write to the new Leader to recommend and supporting scrutiny’s
recommendation that we designate a portfolio lead for climate change and
that portfolio lead also has a member champion and that we also then look
to let the portfolio lead and member champion form a working group to
meet the aspirations of scrutiny and look to consult with the public; and

4. approved the recommendation to report back to Cabinet and the Health &
Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee on the outcomes of Stage 1, when ready.

(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor M Cook)

WRITE OFFS 01 APRIL 2020 TO 31 DECEMBER 2020

The Report of the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance proposed that
Members endorsed the amount of debt written off for the period 01 April 2020 to
31 December 2020.

RESOLVED That Cabinet endorsed the amount of debt written off for the period
of 1st April 2020 to 31 December 2020 set out in Appendix A-E.

(Moved by Councillor R Pritchard and seconded by Councillor D Cook)
CASTLE REVIEW 2020

The Portfolio Holder for Heritage and Regeneration presented to Cabinet the
Castle Review that had been prepared in 2020 and which updated the previous
2018 version taking into account improving the commerciality of the venue. The
Portfolio Holder thanked Officers and members of the Heritage working group for
their input.

RESOLVED that Cabinet approved:

1. the Castle Review undertaken in 2020 as detailed in the report and set out
in Appendix 1; and

2. the action plan and timetable for the delivery of the review
recommendations as set out in Appendix 3.

(Moved by Councillor J Oates and seconded by Councillor D Cook)
MODERN SLAVERY AND HUMAN TRAFFICKING STATEMENT 2019/20
The Portfolio Holder for Regulatory and Community Safety report set out the
Council’'s Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement 2019/20 for
Cabinet’s approval. The report had been previously considered by the Audit

and Governance Committee on 11 February 2021.

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

6
Page 8



Cabinet 18 February 2021

e Noted that the Audit and Governance Committee had endorsed the

statement on 11™ February 2021;
e Approved the Council's Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking

Statement 2019/20.

Leader

7
Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET Agenda ltem 6

THURSDAY, 18 MARCH 2021

REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL
CORPORATE PLAN 2019-22 (2021 UPDATE)
Exempt Information
None
Purpose

To provide Cabinet Members with an update of the Council’s Corporate Plan for the
period to 2022.

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that:

Cabinet approves the Corporate Plan update.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
In March 2019 Cabinet adopted the Council’s Corporate Plan for the period 2019 to
2022. The focus of that document was upon how the Council will use its Corporate
Plan, Medium Term Financial Strategy and agreed priorities to achieve the new
vision.
It is both prudent and good practise to provide our stakeholders with the assurance
they need that Tamworth Borough Council has a vision and clear priorities that are
supported by ambitious plans and actions.
The plan also includes an Annual Review element and, in addition, Cabinet Members
with portfolios for specific services have taken the opportunity to reflect upon some of
the achievements in their respective summaries.
It has also been updated to include the new three-to-five-year ‘Recovery and Reset’
programme, which is designed to ensure the authority remains fit for the future, while
protecting services for our residents, businesses and the most vulnerable in our
community.
This Corporate Plan update spans the remainder of the current Corporate Plan

period to 2022 and is set out at Appendix 1. Subject to Members’ approval it will be
posted on the Council’s internet site for access on demand.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

Not applicable

Page 11



RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

There are none directly arising from this report. The Corporate Vision, Priorities Plan,
Budget & Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 was approved by Council on 23™
February 2021.

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

There are none directly arising from this report.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

There are none directly arising from this report.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

There are none directly arising from this report.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Council has complied with recognised best practise and produced a Corporate
Plan annually since 2008.

REPORT AUTHOR

The report was compiled by John Day and produced by the Council’s Graphics
Team. Contributions from Cabinet Members and Corporate Management Team
have served to enhance the report.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

Not applicable

APPENDICES

1. Corporate Plan 2019- 2022 (Update 2021).

Page 12



Tamuworth

Borough Council

TAMWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL

CORPORATE PLAN 2019-2022 (2021 UPDATE)

OUR VISION: To put Tamworth, its people and the local economy at the heart of everything we do
PEOPLE & PLACE ORGANISATION




CORPORATE PLAN
2019-2022

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION

OUR VISION, PURPOSE & PRIORITIES

PORTFOLIO HOLDER STATEMENTS

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY

14

SUMMARY ACCOUNTS 2020/21

18

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

19

WHAT WE DID IN 2020/21

20

RESET AND RECOVERY

28

CONTACT US

30

2

Tamworth Borough Council

WELCOME

Welcome to Tamworth
Borough Council’s
Corporate Plan update
for the years 2021-2022.

The document outlines
what we want to achieve
in the remaining year of
the 2019-2022 Corporate
Plan and what we have
achieved to date.

It also contains our new
Recovery and Reset
programme which was
established as a response
to the impact of the
Coronavirus pandemic
on Council services.




INTRODUCTION

2020/21 was a challenging year for everyone.The Coronavirus pandemic has
impacted on all of us in a way we could not have imagined when the last
Corporate Plan update was published just a year ago.

These unprecedented fimes we find ourselves in have led to difficult decisions
having to be made across our region, the country, as well as the rest of the world.
The main focus has been, and continues o be, on all working fogether to stem the
spread of this pandemic and profect those most at risk, while trying to mitigate the
impact on our National Health Service.

The economic impact of Covid-19 is already affecting the entire country and while
we have been able fo assist with ensuring grant payments have been made to
eligible businesses it continues fo be a challenging time. Future forecasts vary as fo
the length and breadth of the potential impact and the effects to Tamworth’s local
economy is already being felt. However, the challenges that the pandemic
presented has proved what an amazing place Tamworth is. The Council with the
voluntary and business sectors swung info action, as well as community-spirited
individual residents, and help was offered through various means.

Our absolute priority is protecting critical services and the most vulnerable
members of our community as we navigate this crisis. To this end we combined
shortterm actions (next 12 - 18 months) with planning for a ‘new reality” by
establishing our new three-to-five-year ‘Recovery and Reset’ programme, which is
designed fo ensure the authority remains fit for the future, while protecting services
for our residents, businesses and the most vulnerable in our community.

Despite dealing with the enormous challenges of the pandemic we did achieve
some notable things in 2020/21; the second year of our 2019-2022 Corporate Plan.

Our performance highlights over the year include the Government award of
£21.65m from the Future High Streets Fund which will be used to deliver the biggest
fransformation to Tamworth fown centre in a generation, the completion of 140 units
of Council housing at Tinkers Green and Kerria and the completion of building
fransformation works in Tamworth Castle on the new ‘Battle and Tribute’ exhibition.

The medium term financial planning process continues o be challenged by
Government austerity measures as well as continued uncertainty. The
accomplishment of a balanced three year Medium Term Financial Strategy for the
General Fund is a major achievement as the Council, like others, has planned to
deliver its budget process in light of unprecedented adverse economic conditions
with a great deal of uncertainty over future investment and income levels.

Tamworth Borough Council still believes that it is important to grow the economy to
generate funds fo help those less fortunate and to find new ways to engage with
our customers while ensuring service delivery is prioritised and equitable.

Our focus, energy and resources will continue fo support our people, our place and
our organisation to ensure that we achieve our vision:

‘To put Tamworth, its people and the local econoB)?a agf gne fgaﬂ of everything we do’.

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021) 3

Andrew Barratt
Chief Executive

Jeremy Oates
Leader of the Council

On the 23rd February
2021, | was appointed
as the new Leader of
Tamworth Borough
Council and | look
forward to delivering
the last year of this three
year Corporate Plan.
Looking forward, | fully
support each of the
priority areas and the
outcomes and working
on the development of
a new three-year
Corporate Plan.




OUR VISION, PURPOSE & PRIORITIES

CORPORATE PLAN - ON A PAGE
TAMWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL: VISION

To put Tamworth, its people and the local economy at the heart of everything we do

4
»
»
4
»
»
>
»
»
4
»

help tackle causes and effects of poverty and financial hardship

increase all residents’ resilience and access to information

engage with our residents fo promote community involvement and civic pride

support the development of Tamworth now, and in the future

help the local economy to grow in a way which benefits our residents and businesses

utilise Council resources effectively

help tackle the causes of inequality and increase opportunities for all residents and businesses
help protect, nurture and celebrate our local heritage

help prevent homelessness and help people access suitable housing

help build resilient communities

help develop and safeguard our environment and open spaces

OUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES FOR 2019-2022

People and Place Organisation

To meet housing needs through a
variety of approaches and
interventions

To be financially stable

To ensure our employees have the

economic prosperity right skills and culture to help our
residents, visitors and businesses

To work collaboratively and flexibly to

meet the needs of our communities

G To facilitate sustainable growth and

=
B

To ensure our service delivery is
consistent, clear, and focused
To create a new and developing vision
for the continued evolution of
Tamworth, including a fown centre

fit for the 21st century

-

t

l To ensure our decisions are driven
by evidence and knowledge

To understand and proactively respond f%the impacts of the Coronavirus pandemic
Pana 1

I Mﬂ\r - \J

4 Tamworth Borough Council




PORTFOLIO HOLDER STATEMENTS

PORTFOLIO: ASSETS & FINANCE

CLLR ROBERT PRITCHARD ,
DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

The coronavirus pandemic has interrupted many of the authority’s plans and we have
focused on supporting those most in need in Tamworth. We have also had to adapt to
new ways of delivering services and undertaking our day to day functions.The generational

step forward in the use of technology has ensured that the council continued to function well.

Strong financial management has helped to ensure continued delivery of front line services without

the need for maijor service reductions and the achievement of a three year balanced Medium Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS). At a time when many councils across the country are sfill cutting frontline

services and support to vulnerable residents, we have continued fo protect vulnerable people in our
community who are in greatest need.

The Council's external auditors have again confirmed that the Council prepared a very good set
of accounts, meeting statutory deadlines, and that the Council has a frack record for delivering
budgeted savings. Going forward, the preparation and provision of high quality financial
management information will assist in enabling and informing the decision making process of
the Council.

The Council's Revenues Team has once again performed fo very high standards and has been
proactively increasing the authority’s income, and its preceptors, to assist in financing the balanced
MTFS ensuring continued frontline service provision.

More than ever, we recognise that our financial capacity will be less than in previous years which
means that we will need fo maintain our approach to innovation, collaboration and transformation.
We will continue to review every service at the Council fo ensure maximum efficiency. We will also
focus our investment strategy to drive local economic growth and Council financial stability.

The Tamworth Information Centre has now relocated to the newly refurbished Assembly Rooms, but
sadly had fo close its doors because of the pandemic.The move will give the service a more central
location and allows for more flexible and extended opening hours, including weekends and evenings
when the theatre is open for shows.The Tamworth Information Centre will return to providing a range
of services for residents and visitors fo the fown as soon as it can.This includes selling tickets for the
Assembly Rooms and Tamworth Castle, coach four and event bookings, National Express fickets,
Arriva bus passes, parking permits, information on local amenities and services, green bin
subscriptions, plus gifts and souvenirs.

The Council continues to progress with its comprehensive Asset Management Plan for both the
Housing Revenue Account and General Fund assets in support of a revised Capital Strategy and
has appointed consultants to complete this work and has commenced survey work. This will enable
the Council to understand the current condition of its assets along with current and future
investment requirements and has planned to carry out condition surveys in the coming year to
support this approach.

Page 17

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021) 5




PORTFOLIO: ASSETS & FINANCE cont.

Assets the Council has already planned to make better use of include garage sites, our limited
number of fown centre properties and other land assets dotted around Tamworth. Detailed
assessments of the options for each Council garage site have been undertaken and decisions
regarding the future of each site will be subject fo further consideration during the new
financial year.

We continue to work with Staffordshire County Council colleagues to ensure that the needs of
Tamworth residents are fully understood in relation to the delivery of Disability Facilities Grants.

The demand for Disabled Facilities Grants continues to outstrip available resources and the Council
continues to press for a review of the means by which grant is allocated.

Over the next twelve months we will be investing in elected members and employees to ensure that
they have the skills, knowledge and information they need in order fo serve the town in the shadow
of Covid-19.

Finally, the Council will contfinue to ensure it is open and accountable to the public, this will be
achieved through a review of the Council Constitution and ensuring good governance across the
authority. Through supporting the Leader of the Council and helping all members to bring their
views and ideas to the discussion, | will work to create a better town for residents, businesses and
visitors alike.

Page 18

6 Tamworth Borough Council




PORTFOLIO: ENVIRONMENT & CULTURE

CLLR JOHN CHESWORTH

Our shared waste collection service with Lichfield District Council continues to provide
a quality service that delivers value for money and assists in meeting the challenging
recycling targets set. The percentage of recycling collected against waste sent for

incineration (energy from waste) is holding firm at 41.1%. The sign-up rates for our Green
Wasste collection service were around 50% and look to be heading the same way in 2021.

Waste collection services have been maintained throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, something
that all those responsible for delivery of the service should be proud of.

There will be challenges to come in 2021 with the emerging National Waste Policy and how we
dispose of dry recyclate collected in the blue bins. We will, however, continue to deliver the high
standard of service to which our residents have become accustomed.

The Street Scene Team have again proven to be invaluable and are proactive in their approach.
They deliver the day to day functions necessary to keep our fown looking clean and tidy and this is
recognised in the number of positive comments received about their work. They must be
commended for maintaining their high standards during the Covid-19 pandemic.They are also
responsible for maintaining our open spaces, ensuring that they are safe, attractive and fit for
purpose during these difficult fimes.

Our events offering unfortunately suffered during 2020 due to the various restrictions placed upon us
due fo the pandemic. We did, however, deliver a number of outdoor events in the Castle Grounds
once we were able to, including live music and outdoor theatre productions. These events were alll
delivered in a Covid safe manner, and social distancing was always maintained, whilst allowing the
public to enjoy some live enfertainment. We also infroduced a new "Drive In” cinema event over the
course of a weekend, which was a Covid friendly alternative to our usual Outdoor Cinema offering.
These events were all well received, and we are planning further, similar, events for 2021 before
returning fo a more comprehensive programme in future years.

We also hope that we will be able to re-infroduce events to the Assembly Rooms at some point soon,
always working within any restrictions that may still be in place. It was so frustrating to be able to
open the Assembly Rooms, only fo have to close again within a reasonably short period of time due
to the outbreak of the pandemic.

Page 19

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021) 7




PORTFOLIO: HERITAGE & PERFORMANCE

CLLR DANIEL COOK

It is clear to everyone that 2020 was a year in which the rate of change was
unprecedented and this was certainly felt in the Heritage and Growth Portfolio with
huge pressures on businesses and changes to the way we behave. Fortunately, the
projects that were started within this portfolio were of a nature that they could not only
progress but were at a stage where they could begin fo adapt to the challenges brought
about by the pandemic.

2019 saw Tamworth Borough Council embark on the ‘Tamworth What's Next’ discussions which
generated a plethora of ideas and suggestions as to how the town centre could improve and ideas
of what would benefit the fown centre. Some of the suggestions involved structural change, some
involved public realm changes and some highlighted areas where relationships between all
partners could be improved. A number of key priorities were drawn out of this exercise and over half
of them were included in our successful bid for Future High Street Funding; £21.65m of government
funding is coming to Tamworth Borough Council to transform Tamworth’s town centre.

We now have two large council projects within the fown centre. The Future High Street Funding of
£21.65m is a once in a generation chance to move Tamworth forward again but that money isn't
going to deliver the whole project and that’s where partners come in, including £3.9m of Tamworth
Borough Council support and contributions via Tamworth College.

The second project is the redevelopment of the Gungate site which, for the first time, came into the
ownership of the Council only a couple of years ago.This plan is slightly different in regards to its offer
as is at master planning stage.The two projects will not just change the shape and feel of the town
centre but will also build a thriving fown centre.

Town centres need people to thrive. So the aims of the two maijor projects are about bringing people
info the town centre where they can support the shopping centres, night time economy, cafes and
personal service businesses of Tamworth.Two key statistics are constantly in our thoughts - around
2/3rds of people are in fown centres for other reasons than shopping and retail - over half of people
are in fown centres for social inferaction whether they are living alone, young families, working in
offices, unemployed or simply want to have a walk around where there are other people - all sets of
people are likely fo spend money in the fown centre simply by being there.

The footfall of Tamworth’s fown centre will grow as a result of increased business, offices, residential
units and Tamworth College. These projects will result in an immediate increase in footfall which will
see growth in our economy.

Within the wider offer of the fown centre and Tamworth'’s offer, Tamworth Borough Council has taken
advantage of the enforced closures o our own venues and the government funding such as the
Cultural Recovery Fund which we will see the fruits of in the coming year.

The Castle review, that was passed by Cabinet in March 2021, sets out a really exciting set of projects
that see investment into the castle experience, including a new inclusive pricing structure, a new

Page 20

8 Tamworth Borough Council




combination of real life and augmented reality experience, online display of some of the collection,
maintenance of the castle and the movement of the café to the stone building near the enfrance to
the Castle Grounds. Tamworth Castle needs fo draw a local, regional and national audience and in
doing so will play an important role in the growth of the local economy as well as promote the place
branding that is Tamworth.

Tamworth Borough Council has successfully applied for cultural recovery fund for both The Castle
and Assembly Rooms, the previously mentioned augmented reality project and options to improve
the cataloguing and access fo the archive we have in Tamworth. For the Assembly Rooms this will
see additional equipment to broaden the types of events that can be put on there as well as
improve the versatility of the facility as a conference venue. With the works mentioned we need fo
work better with others to ensure the Tamworth story is told in full.

It would be wrong not to mention how fough the last twelve months have been on local businesses
and especially the hospitality industry in Tamworth. The Borough Council has been supporting local
business in several different ways including sourcing advice, administering government grants, and
promoting safe ways of working. Tamworth Borough Council also engaged with the Federation of
Small Businesses and Tamworth and Lichfield Chamber of Commerce to provide advice and
updates on the Covid-19 situation as it progressed.

In the year ahead Tamworth Borough Council will not only continue to provide this support but will
also need to work closely with Local Enterprise Partnerships and local businesses to rebuild an
economy that works for more, which will also include addressing the skills required to be successful
in the post pandemic world, examples of these include modern methods of construction, electric
vehicle maintenance, online remote working and flexible office space provision.

Page 21

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021) 9




PORTFOLIO:

REGULATORY AND SAFETY

CLLR STEPHEN DOYLE

Since March 2020 the Environmental Health Team have seen an exponential increase in
workload as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. As well as enforcing the various
lockdown/tier restrictions for different business sectors the team have also been
commissioned by Staffordshire County Council to investigate outbreaks of Covid-19

in local workplaces.

At the same time, the service has continued fo provide critical services including high-risk food hygiene
inspections/complaints, taxi and alcohol licence applications, noise/odour complaints and planning
consultations. As well as being focused on delivering the renewal of the Gambling Policy in the very near future.
This additional workload will continue for the foreseeable future until a return to a more normal way of life
resumes for everyone.

The Planning Team have been busy preparing tenders ready for a Local Plan Review.The start of this should e
over the next twelve months and will take into consideration any changes to planning policy issued by Central
Government as a result of the recent White Paper issued in August 2020.The Council’s Policy Team has already
responded fo this White Paper on behalf of Members.

Work confinues on legislative requirements that place a duty fo cooperate with neighbouring and other
authorities that have strategic and/or cross border matters in common, like those of our near neighbours
Lichfield and North Warwickshire District Councils and those further afield within the Housing Market Area and
Birmingham City Council.

The team will shortly be publishing an Infrastructure Funding Statement, which will transparently set out the
Section 106, and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) spending to ensure that legislation is complied with.

The Development Control Team continues fo be top performers with the Planning Team having engaged with
neighbouring authorities fo ensure that applications on the border of Tamworth contribute o necessary
infrastructure in Tamworth to meet the needs of those new residents.

The feam will continue their high performance over the next twelve months to ensure that the Borough
Council's growth agenda is delivered such as the Future High Street Fund applications and other regeneration
opportunities that the Borough Council brings forwards.

The Covid-19 crisis has resulted in a reduction of fees incoming due to a fall in the number of applications for
the Building Control Partnership. This trend has been experienced across the private sector too.The partnership
has looked to continue to deliver a full range of services throughout the crisis. The health and safety of staff and
customers has remained a top priority throughout and officers have put in place measures that help maintain
inspection delivery.

A new Building Control and Land Charges Partnership Manager was appointed in October 2020 and has
quickly begun the process of recruiting and filling vacant posts which will have a positive impact on the land
charges out turns. In addition, there is a move fowards agile working with some building control officers trialling
new ways of working to improve efficiency and accuracy.

Community Safety

The Community Safety Partnership continues to provide a high level of confidence amongst the residents in the
community, of particular focus are those who are the most vulnerable in our society. One of the key drivers is fo
provide an environment where the partners can share information, looking to ensure cases are not overlooked
and avoid duplication of effort allowing for the b grgfoemﬁiﬁg of resources of ourselves and our partners.

]O Tamworth Borough Council




The updated Community Safety Plan 2020-23 has been adopted and provides an action plan fo work
fogether.

As part of the Council’s key priorities there is a strong drive fo seeking fo profect the most vulnerable within
our communities, by providing training and guidance to partners, working with neighbouring councils and
more recently reviewing the Licensing Policy for Tamworth.

The review of the Licensing Policy, which was adopted late in 2019, continues to adopt a Cumulative Impact
Assessment around Tamworth town centre. This limits the number of applications granted in areas where
there is evidence fo show that the number and density of licensed premises in the area is having a
cumulative impact.

The future sees the feam undergoing business transformation to become a digitised and streamlined
service ready fo meet the needs of the community it serves.

The on-going task of combating anti-social behaviour continues and recently we saw the renewal of the
Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) for Dosthill Park which has proven to be popular and successful in its
application and renewal of the Tamworth Dog Control and the Alcohol Restriction PSPO in the town centre
and Amingfon.

The correct use of PSPO’s empower both the Police and our own Community Wardens, looking to reinforce
existing laws and policies as well as providing reminders to residents. An example of the success of PSPO’s is
the co-operation of the Police and the Borough Council with the borough-wide Vehicle Nuisance PSPO.

The Community Wardens continue fo provide an important service to both the Council and our partners
and we look fo further develop the service o meet both changing times and new demands.

As time progresses, the individuals in the Community Wardens Team have demonstrated a flexible
approach to their role in the presence of changing circumstances such as that posed by Covid-19.

They continue to engage with residents, particularly with the younger members of the community, and work
with our partners in maintaining community safety.

The Partnership Team officers continue fo engage with our primary schools on issues such as internet safety,
bullying and anti-social behaviour, proactively working to deliver virtual sessions during the Covid pandemic
and in partnership with the Safe and Sound programme through Staffordshire Fire and Rescue.

Domestic violence remains a high priority for the Council and we actively support our partners in
combating domestic crime.The Assistant Director Partnerships works with Police and Fire and Rescue
colleagues to Chair the Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) in Tamworth to protect high risk
victims of domestic abuse.The model used has now been rolled out across Staffordshire due fo its success.

We continue to work with Staffordshire County Council colleagues around the introduction of the Domestic
Abuse Act 2020 fo ensure the maintenance of safe accommodation through funding fo Pathway and the
continue funding of New Era, the County domestic abuse service.

Early intervention remains key to much of the work carried out by Tamworth Borough Council and our
partners.

The Partnerships Team have proactively worked with staff and partners to introduce guidance around how
fo assist vulnerable customers who threaten suicide. The guidance will be included in the updated
Safeguarding Policy along with updated fraining.

This will all be supported with Champions for Safeguarding within the organisation for Officers and
Members, key fo this role is to provide support and signpost people to the correct contacts when identifying

potfential cases.
Page 23

1

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021)




PORTFOLIO:

NEIGHBOURHOODS

CLLR MICHELLE COOK

When | completed the highlights of 2019 and set out our ambitions for 2020, |
certainly could not have envisaged the year that we would all face and the
challenges it would bring. | am very proud to say that collectively our teams rose to
the task and continued to deliver, whilst adapting to a Covid-19 world.

During 2020, we had the infroduction of a new ten year repairs contract, which saw ENGIE join us to
undertake repairs and Wates Living Space have responsibility for planned repairs, including
bathrooms, kitchens and external works. In addition, after listening to customer feedback, the repairs
call cenfre was moved back in-house, thus allowing more measurement and monitoring of the
service offered.

This long-ferm contract approach has enabled a more joined up partnership which we believe will
provide better customer satisfaction levels.To date, this has been working very well with 95% of all
callers stating they are ‘satisfied’. This is a marked improvement on previous years and something |
hope will continue to improve with time.

The £19m redevelopment of the Kerria and Tinkers Green estates continued to progress towards
completion. In December 2020, the final keys were handed over at Tinkers Green finishing off the new
96 home project and the Kerria site keys were handed over in February 2021.This redevelopment
marks the completion of the first major rebuild of council housing stock in a generation within
Tamworth. | am confident that these homes will be much loved and most importantly, fit for purpose
for those who need them.

We have continued our acquisitions project using our Right to Buy receipts. Unfortunately, we were
not able fo complete as many as we had hoped in year, partly due to the partial shutdown of the
housing market at the start of the pandemic.

Investing in our council owned stock has, like every year, remained a priority. Whilst some planned
projects and non-urgent repairs were not able to continue, all those that did were done in a Covid
secure way.

Moving tfowards a contact-free lettings service was critical to ensure people could continue fo move
home during the pandemic.This is just one way in which the Housing team enabled business as
usual, as well as infroducing the new allocation policy.

Our Housing Strategy was completed in year, which sets out the overarching way Tamworth Borough
Council will manage housing demand going forward. This demonstrates that a significant part of our
work is supporting non-council fenants and households.

During the year, 64 Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMOs) were licensed, which ensures that the
standards for their residents are adequate.

Page 24

]2 Tamworth Borough Council




The last item | wish to draw attention to is the feam supported the installation and supply of gas at
Willowbank, which helped to improve heating options for local residents.

2021 will see a number of similar challenges to 2020, but the resilience of our staff and contfractors,
will enable another successful year where we all able fo continue to put Tamworth residents at the
heart of our operations. We will continue to focus on the business as usual activities, as well as seek to
implement an energy efficiency strategy as part of our goal fo become Carbon Zero by 2050, and
implement any recommendations that come out of the High Rise Fire Safety review.

Page 25

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021

13



THE MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY

STEFAN GARNER, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(FINANCE)

Future levels of funding for the Council are uncertain.The budget setfting
process has faced significant constraints in Government funding in recent
years; over 50% in real terms since 2010.The accomplishment of a balanced
three year Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for the General Fund is a major
achievement as the Council, like others, has planned fo deliver its budget process in
light of unprecedented conditions with a great deal of uncertainty over future
investment and income levels such as car parking, land charges and corporate
property rents.

The extraordinary events we are living through follow a decade of austerity, friggered by the financial
crisis of 2008/09, which had already placed considerable strain on local authority finances.
Increased demand for many local public services, directly related to the outbreak of the virus, has
placed immediate pressure on local authority cash flows and expenditure budgets.The longerterm
consequences of recession and unemployment on demand for services have yet to be
experienced.

When the budget and MTFS for 2020/21 were approved, future levels of funding for the Council were
uncertain pending the most significant changes in Local Government funding for a generation.The
reforms were planned to be in place by 2020/21 but were deferred until 2021/22.The Government
has confirmed that the longerterm reforms for the local government finance system, including the
move to 75% Business Rates Retention and Fairer Funding Review of Relative Needs and Resources,
will be deferred again as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, although no timescales have been
released. In addition, the next planned national Business Rates Revaluation, planned for 2021 has
now been deferred to 2023.

As a nation we are likely to feel the consequences of the Covid-19 pandemic, and the measures to
contain and mitigate its effects, for years to come.

At the same time, several important sources of local authority income including Council Tax, Non
domestic (business) rates, fees and charges, rents and investment returns have, fo a greater or lesser
extent, been subject to reduction or suspension.

In light of the projected impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s MTFS, an immediate suspension of all
non-essential spending was approved by Cabinet on 9th July and managers were required fo
review their budgets and identify all non-essential spending for 2020/21 and approval was sought
for the budget to be revised fo remove these.

No one can know what the effect of the Covid-19 crisis will have on the economy and ultimately the
impact for the Council’s finances. It will be many months before we have a clearer idea on how the
economy has been affected - including any lasting effects for individual businesses and their

Page 26

]4 Tamworth Borough Council




employees. Social distancing measures will remain in place for the foreseeable future - impacting
mainly on the Council’s ongoing income receipfs.

Financial resilience is, and has been, the key requirement for local authorities at any time, but in the
current crisis it has assumed unprecedented importance. Perhaps the biggest difficulty with the
pandemic is that there is no certainty about time scales; it is impossible to draw any conclusions
about how long the effects will last.

During the crisis, the Council has lost income which will significantly impact on the potential
sustainability of the organisation, as will be the case across many Local Government organisations.
Whilst the full extent of this cannot be known at present it will be necessary for the Council fo take an
accelerated approach towards the development and implementation of an effective sustainability
strategy, linked to an overall vision for the organisation.

Cabinet, on 22nd October 2020, approved the Recovery and Reset programme which aims to
consider how we can tackle the financial challenges facing the Council as a result of the
coronavirus pandemic. This will include reviewing services, reducing waste demand on services
(basically this is any action or step in a process that does not add value tfo the customer), exploring
opportunities for income generation and identifying any further savings.

The overriding goal is fo make sure our organisation remains fit for the future, while protecting services
fo the most vulnerable in our community. The Recovery and Reset programme outlines that this work
be split into eight projects.

The Council remains committed to promoting and stimulating economic growth and regeneration;
meeting our housing needs; creating a vibrant town centre economy and protecting those most
vulnerable in our communities.The Council is responding to these challenges by considering the
opportunities to grow our income. We are ambitious with our commercial view and will confinue to
work hard to identify income streams that enable us to confinue to meet the needs of our residents.

More than ever, we recognise that our financial capacity will be less than in previous years which
means that we will need o maintain our approach to innovation, collaboration and transformation.

This approach will change the organisation and how it works; will require Members to put evidence
and insight at the heart of our decision making fo ensure that we are transparent about the rationale
for our decisions and plans; will involve managed risks and will sustain essential services critical in
supporting the most vulnerable in our communities at a fime when demand is increasing and
resources reducing.

Page 27

15

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021)




STEFAN GARNER, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(FINANCE)

Work is continuing on a number of actions fo address the financial position in future years:

The Recovery and Reset programme approved by Cabinet aims to consider how we can tackle the
financial challenges facing the council as a result of the coronavirus pandemic. This will include
reviewing services, reducing waste demand on services (basically this is any action or step in a
process that does not add value to the customer), exploring opportunities for income generation
and identifying any further savings.The overriding goal is fto make sure our organisation remains fit for
the future, while protecting services to the most vulnerable in our community.

The Recovery and Reset programme outlines that this work be split into eight projects:

1. Financial Management and Commerciality - Seeking to remove historic underspends and adopt
an in-service approach to rigorous and controlled spending.

2. Smart Working - Exploration of the business impacts around current levels of home working and
what the future is for AGILE working.

3. Building Requirements and Utilisation - Consideration of the best use of all our property assets to
ensure the council’s resources are focused on frontline service delivery.

4. Front Reception and Customer Service Offer — Exploration of customer service models to
assess the impact of front reception closing during the pandemic and how acceleration of
digitising services can be delivered whilst ensuring our most vulnerable customers retain face fo
face services.

5. Service Re-design and Review - An organisational wide review of each service to identify short,
medium and longerterm opportunities to improve delivery of services central fo the Council’s core
purpose and strategic aims.

6. Third Sector Support and Vulnerability Strategy - Recognising that one of the most positive
outcomes to the pandemic is the overwhelming ability of ‘anchor organisations and communities’ to
mobilise and support each other, this project will explore how the Council's commissioning framework
can be aligned to build on these foundations going forward and how we define and develop our
vulnerability strategy, building on the baseline assessment commissioned over the summer.

7. Economy and Regeneration - Work has continued on the future of our high street and alongside this
the economic recovery and regeneration of Tamworth is central o our future Recovery and Reset.

8. Heritage - This project will attempt fo define and establish a baseline of all of our heritage assets
and review all opportunities to celebrate, nurture and protect our local heritage.

Page 28

]6 Tamworth Borough Council




Together with any opportunities arising from the response fo the Covid-19 pandemic, for Member

consideration during the budget process.

» Ongoing lobbying of Government to provide additional support, in light of the financial impact of
the pandemic, and clarity over future funding arrangements - including discussions with the MP
and continued Local Government Association (LGA) representation and parliamentary briefings.

» Monthly completion of Covid-19 financial monitoring returns to the Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) and sales, fees and charges income loss
compensation scheme claims.

» Non-essential spend review identified £1.2m in 2020/21 (including vacancies of £0.5m) and
ongoing year on year savings included in the base budget of ¢.£0.75m (from the £1.2m identified
in 2020/21). In light of the financial situation facing the Council, managers were tasked with
identifying low level non-essential budgets for removal from the budget.

» Recruitment freeze for all but essential posts (which are subject to robust re-justification process).

» Review of Property fund investment options to generate improved returns of ¢. 4% o 5% p.a. (plus
asset growth). A savings target to return ¢.4% p.a. from the planned investment of £12m in
Diversified Property Funds has already been included from 2021 /22.

» Review of reserves - undertaken in November (including ensuring adequate provision for the
funding uncertainties /creation of fund for tfransformation costs).

Council, on 23rd February 2021, approved a three year Medium Term Financial Strategy for the
General Fund with a Council Tax increase of €5 for the year - in order to contfinue to deliver those
services essential fo the local community.

With regard to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA), a five year MTFS was approved by Council
including significant investment in regeneration projects to meet future housing needs and sustain
the HRA in the longer term.

Page 29

17

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021)




The headline figures for 2021/22 are:

» a General Fund Net Cost of Services of £ 7 ]34 620 a reduction of 22.1%
compared to 2020/21; ’ 4

» the Band D Council Tax would be set at £'|86.89 an increase
of £5 (2.75% - ¢.£0.10 per week) on the level from 2020/21 of £181.89;

» a General Fund Capital Programme of £3o 732m for 5 years;
[
» a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Expenditure level of £-|4 745 7]0 for 2021/22
4 4

(excluding interest & similar charges);

» an average rent of £89 2 set in line with the approved Rent Setting Policy including
®

a 1.5% increase in average rent (on the 2020/2021 average rent of £87.93 based on a 48
week rent year) in line with Government confirmation that social housing rents can increase to
include "up to” a factor of the consumer price index (CPl) measure of inflation plus 1% for five
years from 2020, following the conclusion of a consultation of the new rent standard, and
equates to £82.38 on an annualised 52 week basis;

» a Housing Capital Programme of £33 742 for 5 years.
0 m

Page 30

]8 Tamworth Borough Council




SUMMARY ACCOUNTS 2020/21

Due fo the earlier publication of this combined document the draft summary accounts for 2020/21
are not yet available. As soon as they are (approximately end of June 2021) they will be posted on
the Council’s website.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Annual Governance Statement is a statutory document published following a review of the
effectiveness of the Authority’s system of internal control. It explains the governance framework
(systems and processes, culture and values) that the Authority has in place, and includes an action
plan to address any significant governance issues identified.

Due tfo the earlier publication of this combined document, the annual governance statement for
2020/21 is not yet available. The Annual Governance Statement is published with the Annual
Statement of Accounts and will be available later in the year.

Page 31

19

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021)




20

WHAT WE'VE DONE SO FAR
OUR PRIORITIES: PEOPLE & PLACE PRIORITIES

Priority

1.To meet
housing need
through a
variety of
approaches
and
intervention

Key Actions/Deliverables 2019/22

» Completion of new council housing at Tinkers
Green and Kerria fo deadline and budget

» Implementation of the Homelessness
Reduction Act and associated actions

» Reviewing our local plan to ensure it is fit for
purpose and reflective of housing needs

» Working with Landlords to help ensure relevant
standards for private rented are achieved

What we have done so far

This £24.25 million project was completed in
January 2021 providing 140 homes.

The new Repairs & Investment contract
commenced in April 2020 supported by an
in-house call centre.

There were 87 Bed & Breakfast placements in
the calendar year 2020.

The new Housing Allocations Policy was
implemented in June 2020.

The Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
was approved by Cabinet in December 2020.

Cabinet approved the phased ending of the
Private Sector Leasing scheme and replaced it
with the allocation of fen ‘floating” Council stock
properties (based on flexible need) for a
permanent Council stock temporary
accommodation scheme.

Cabinet endorsed the response to consultation
on the Government’s White Paper ‘Planning for
the Future’ which creates uncertainty in setting
out the timescale for the delivery of the new
Local Plan and the preparation of a Local
Development Scheme.

The new Housing Strategy was approved by
Cabinet in November 2020.

The Private Sector Housing feam have
supported initiatives in partnership with the
Warm Homes Fund to deliver new gas services
in Tamworth and to promote the Green Homes
Schemes.

The Council has continued with its work to
proactively ensure the licensing of all relevant
houses in multiple occupation. 33 licences
were issued in 2019/20 ensuring that the
properties are safe and managed properly and
11 are in progress.

Work is ongoing in this area including update of
web based information and signposting to
energy efficiency advice through our HEAT
service.

2.To facilitate
sustainable
growth and
economic
prosperity

» Development of a Place Investment Strategy

A draft of this strategy has been completed
prior to the Covid pandemic, and is currently
awaiting further review fo ensure it is still fit for
purpose prior to the consultation phase.

Page 32

Tamworth Borough Council




Priority

Key Actions/Deliverables 2019/22

» Production of a viable and deliverable
masterplan fo encompass the Gungate site
that is both reflective of the ftowns needs and
fiscal requirements

» Delivery of sound business advice through
locally engaged growth hub advisors

What we have done so far

A masterplan has been developed, and was
put out for resident consultation during
February 2021, however given this work was
completed prior fo the pandemic it is likely
some elements will need to be revisited to
ensure it are still fit for purpose and will respond
fo economic recovery post pandemic.

The Council hosts an officer embedded in the
Greater Birmingham and Solihull Local
Enterprise partnership Growth Hub, a service
that delivers information, advice, guidance and
practical support to businesses based in
Southern Staffordshire. Since the inception in
2019 the council has supported the Growth hub
in delivering the following activity:

+ 45 intensive 1-2-1 sessions with businesses on
fopics ranging from grants, fo starting a
business up, fo skills.

+ Over 120 general enquiries and signposting
fo direct business support providers.

+ Triaging and advising businesses on Covid-19
related matters.

3.To work
collaboratively
and fiexibly to
meet the
needs of our
communities

ST

» Review of Tamworth Strategic Partnership

» Promotion of the Council’s role in community
leadership and member involvement

The review of the Tamworth Strategic Partnership
has been completed resulting in the
establishment of a Partnership Coordination
Group including statutory agencies and third
sector representatives who work together to
coordinate activities.

£34,000 of funding has been allocated through
the Community Safety Partnership and County

Council Early Help funding to facilitate a project
for young people at risk of Criminal exploitation.

The Community Safety Partnership continues to
support the Multi-Agency Risk Assessment
Conference (MARAC) domestic abuse
meetings for high risk victims.

During the current pandemic the Council has
worked pro-actively to support the voluntary
sector in supporting vulnerable people and
wider community needs. This approach has
seen Council staff embedded within third sector
organisations to support the provision of
practical support to those shielding. In addition
the Council has provided financial and other
support to support the resilience of Tamworth’s
high preforming and committed third sector
organisations.

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021)




22

OUR PRIORITIES: PEOPLE & PLACE PRIORITIES

Priority

Key Actions/Deliverables 2019/22

» Engage with residents fo shape our services,
fest customer satisfaction and empower
communities

» Ensuring early help and intervention is at the
heart of service delivery

What we have done so far

The Council has also invested in community
responses during the pandemic through its
commissioning and is delivering, through Ward
Councillors, a grants programming aimed at
supporting communities.

Cross agency working has continued fo
support those who are currently clinically
vulnerable.

Budget consultation completed.

The Council has undertaken a vulnerability
assessment to identify those communities who
may require additional support and service
approaches. This assessment will support the
Council’s service redesign programme as part
of the Recovery and Reset programme.

The Council has developed a plan which will
include the review of all service areas over the
coming years to ensure that service delivery is
evidence based and transparent and that
vulnerable households are supported to access
the services they need.

4.To create a
new and
developing
vision for the
continued
evolution of
Tamworth,
including a
Town Centre fit
for the 21st
century

AV

» Develop a Master plan for the Town Centre

» Delivery of a co-ordinated Town Centre
Programme

» Relocation of Tamworth Information Centre

» Delivery of the HLF funded 'Batfle and Tribute’

project af Tamworth Castle

» Timely opening of the refurbished assembly
rooms

Due to the successful work on the Future High
Streets Fund (FHSF) this was different and
somewhat superseded. Work over the next
three years will include scoping and inception,
procurement, consultation then delivery.

Work in this area has included the Town Centre
Strategy, Gungate Masterplan, Market retender,
Town Centre funding applications and a car
parking strategy.

The Tamworth Information Centre relocated into
regenerated Assembly Rooms in January 2020.

Building transformation works were completed
in Tamworth Castle on the new 'Battle and
Tribute’ exhibition that will fransform the top floor
of the castle fo an Anglo-Saxon, interactive
fribute.

The Assembly Rooms reopened in January 2020
following a multi-million pound refurbishment;
the biggest in its 130 year history. For the 8
weeks the venue was open all shows were sold
out. Headline acts were booked with a full
programme fo take the venue into 2021 and
beyond putting it firmly on the map for a
destination of choice.

Page 34

Tamworth Borough Council




Priority

Key Actions/Deliverables 2019/22

» Develop a masterplan for new community
green space and the delivery of a local centre
at Amington.

What we have done so far

New Green Space

The considerable re-planning of the site to
make sure that it blends in with the surrounding
development is underway. The project has
been delayed due to remodelling of the
landscape which is fo be completed by Redrow,
Covid when the developer and landscape
consultant staff were furloughed for some time
and fo changes to the shape and size of the
woodland. There is sfill an ‘in principle’ grant
available for £100k but the Council will need

o re-apply in 2021 fo secure, once the
woodland is officially transferred to the Council
in the first half of 2021. Work should start on site
in late 2021.

New Local Centre

Following completion of the relevant demand
studies (retail, later living, children’s nursery,
primary care) a masterplan for the local centre
has been agreed which includes a tfemporary
National House Building Council construction
fraining centre. Negotiations with the Clinical
Commissioning Group are on-going with
regards fo the provision of primary care services
at the local centre.

Discussions are on-going with Staffordshire
County Council fo determine the potential
need for public sector care facilities.

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021)

23



OUR PRIORITIES: ORGANISATION PRIORITIES

Priority  Key Actions/Deliverables 2019/22  What we have done so far

1.To be » Delivery of a three year Medium Term On 23rd February 2021, Council approved a
financially Financial Strategy three year Medium Term Financial Strategy
stable (MTFS) for the General Fund with a Council Tax

increase of £5 for the year - in order to
LY continue to deliver those services essential to

the Local Community and a five year Housing
Revenue Account MTFS.

The accomplishment of a balanced MTFS is a
major achievement as the Council, like others,
has planned fo deliver its budget process in
light of unprecedented conditions with a great
deal of uncertainty over future investment and
income levels such as car parking, land
charges and corporate property rents - as well
as the potential lasting effects of the Covid-19
pandemic for future Business Rates and
Council Tax income.

» Review of Corporate Capital Strategy An updated Corporate Capital Strategy was
approved by Council with the MTFS which
reflected the work completed on the agreed
action plan items since 2019 including:

+ The Asset Strategy Steering Group (ASSG)
now meet on a quarterly basis to
identify improvements in the management
and monitoring of the capital programme,

+ A post implementation review is completed
for each scheme where learning is identified
which could assist future projects or where
there is a significant financial or political
impact,

+ Indicative capital requirements for the long
ferm identified as part of the business
planning process,

« Consideration of whole life costs with further
work planned for 2021,

» Asset Management Strategy for Housing The Asset Management Plan has been
Revenue Account and General Fund assets reviewed and updated, with an up to date
stock condition survey during 2020 and is due
to be finalised by Spring 2021.This should set
out the detailed capital resources/expenditure
required to maintain assets, together with the
associated fimeframe, to inform options
appraisal and feed into the capital strategy for
ASSG/Corporate Management Team review of
potential schemes including the identification
of poorly performing and well performing
assets, and as a result develop a plan for future
maintenance and investment, and options
appraisal/disposals plans as appropriate.

Page 36

24 Tamworth Borough Council




Priority

2.To ensure our
employees
have the right
skills and
culture to help
our residents,
visitors and
businesses

g

Key Actions/Deliverables 2019/22

» Complete a commercialisation review and
implement measures identified

» Invest in commercial activities including
1. Development of Council’s Trading company
and associated income stream

2. Maximise returns of cash flow through Property
Fund investments

» Continue with channel shift to digital across all
departments.
Implement Corporate customer portals

What we have done so far

The review of the approach fo
commercialisation by the District Councils
across the region has been completed.The
results and recommendations arising from this
has informed the development of a
Commercialisation Strategy (in draft).

This will inform the action plan being
developed under the Financial Management
and Commerciality workstream within the
Recovery and Reset Programme approved by
Cabinet in October 2020.

1.Company established during 2018 (Solway
(Tamworth) Limited)

The delivery frameworks for the planned
development have been explored and, during
2020/21, consideration of the potential impact
of the pandemic.

2.Since 2018 the Council has started to invest
in Commercial Property Funds o establish a
porffolio which is managed to generate a
revenue return to the Council fo support
financial sustainability and to protect the
provision of services to residents, along with
maintaining and growing the capital value of
the investment. A capital scheme of £12m
was included within the 2018/19 capital
programme to generate a target net
additional income of ¢. £300k per annum
financed from part of the capital receipt from
the sale of the former Golf Course. During
2018, the Council invested c. £4m in 2
property funds - which are yielding a refurn
of c.4% p.a.

Due to the current economic uncertainty, it was
agreed by Council in December 2020 that the
planned investment of the remaining £8m in
property funds be deferred, with a review
during Spring 2021 when the situation should
be clearer, to inform future investment plans.

Work on the implementation of the
MyTamworth (Customer Portal) continues and
skills are being further enhanced to enable
self-sufficiency in the portal. Implementation of
the portal is expected by the end of quarter
one 2021.

In addition, the MyHousing (Housing Portal)
was launched in December 2020 which
provides Council fenants with information such
as details of their rent accounts, repairs
history/status, etc.

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021)




26

OUR PRIORITIES: ORGANISATION PRIORITIES

Priority

Key Actions/Deliverables 2019/22

» Complete phase 2 of Senior Management
Review

What we have done so far

The review was completed delivering savings of
around £380k per annum.

2.To ensure our
employees
have the right
skills and
culture to help
our residents,
visitors and
businesses

§

» Develop an Organisational and People
Strategy that ensures the organisation is
focussed on the future

» Undertake a Peer review

» Develop a training and development
programme that focusses on generic skills as
well as the technical skills required for the 21st
Century public servant

» Develop a member training portal to equip
elected members with the necessary skills and
knowledge to allow them to act as public
advocates

As a reaction fo the Pandemic the HR / OD
strategy included immediate changes to work
patterns, policies and procedures as well
changes to communication processes.

Work is now ongoing with the strategy which will
be further informed as the organisation moves
info the delivery phase of the Reset and
Recovery Project.

A Leadership Programme has been developed
and is now launched which will ensure
managers at all levels have the opportunity to
participate in practical and theoretical
learning across a full range of management
disciplines.

This was due to take place in June 2020 but
wass postponed due to the pandemic. It is now
anfticipated fo take place in 2021 (or later
should Covid restrictions contfinue).

All non-essential training and development was
paused due to the impact of the pandemic.
However, where essential skills and knowledge
are required delivery has continued.

All posts which require formal qualifications
and / or continued professional development
has also continued.

+ A Member training programme was
established and has included fraining on:

+ Data protection and freedom of information,
+ Scrutiny skills,

+ Equality and diversity,

+ Safeguarding,

+ Communications, PR and media.

3.To ensure

our service
delivery is
consistent, clear,
and focused

» Development of a Communication Strategy
that reinforces public expectation of
fransparency and accountability from the
Council

» Delivery and approval of the Tamworth
Community Offer

A working group has been established and the
strategy is scheduled for finalisation in the first
quarter of 2021/2022.

A Local Government Association
Communications Health Check was completed
in November 2020 resulting in
recommendations which will support the work
plan for 2021/2022.

This is scheduled for 2021/22.

Page 38

Tamworth Borough Council




Priority  Key Actions/Deliverables 2019/22  What we have done so far

» Work collaboratively with our partners to Work was undertaken with the Housing Quality
maximise our effectiveness and support Network fo define vulngroble groups and the
vulnerable people and communities effects of the pandemic on them.

A shared Close Circuit Television service with
the West Midlands Combined Authority was
developed and commenced in April 2020.

4.To ensure our » Review our data sets and collate info one data Customer services have commenced work on
decisions are repository data collection in ferms of customer profiling.
driven by

evidence and

knowledge » Creation of a datfa/insight resource This is scheduled for 2021/22.

» Make full use of available customer insight and The Repairs centre was launched in April 2020.
l resident feedback to inform our decisions This has supported monthly performance
. reporfing on customer satisfaction, analysing
complaints, operational data and preventative
measures.

Social media usage is now further monitored
and analysed so as to reduce demand on
service provision.

Page 39

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021 27




RECOVERY AND RESET PROGRAMME

The council has set out a new three-fo-five-year ‘Recovery and Reset’ programme, which is designed to ensure the
authority remains fit for the future, while protecting services for our residents, businesses and the most vulnerable in

our community.

The programme is split across eight project areas (workstreams) including; financial management and
commerciality, smart working, a review of Tamworth Borough Council buildings, exploration of customer services
models, economy and regeneration and local heritage - including opportunities fo celebrate, nurture and protect.

More detail is included in the table below.

Workstream Objective

Financial
management &
commerciality

SMART working

Deliver savings and increased income via processes that include an assessment of the impact
on delivery of corporate objectives & organisational aims.

Deliver a costed business case to consider the potential for mandatory SMART working
including the assessment of benefits & risks.

Building
requirements

Develop a costed plan for potential disinvestment in Marmion House including options for
alternatives.

Front reception
& customer
services offer

Deliver a costed business case to assess the potential for re-design of the fransformation of the
customer services offer.

Support the digital transformation agenda by mapping transactions in line with benchmarked
best practise.

Establish & define the customer service offer based on universal, fargeted & specialist support.

Service
redesign

Develop & implement an approach for service redesign across the organisation including
service reviews of every service area over the life of the programme.

Establish a base line review of each service in order fo prioritise income generation, savings
opportunities in the short & medium term.

Third sector

Develop an approach to third sector commissioning linked closely to achievement of the

support & Council’s business aims.
:#:;:rgt'lyblllw Share the vulnerability baseline assessment with relevant stakeholders.

Develop a Vulnerability Strategy exploring all the recommendations detailed.
Economy, Develop a strategic approach to supporting business & regeneration of the town.
business,

regeneration

Link Future High Street Funding outcomes to wider place based service delivery.

Heritage

To scope what is meant by the ferm ‘heritage asset’.

Undertake a review of the current heritage offer within Tamworth to establish a
baseline/inventory of all heritage assets (including buildings, land & collection).

Propose an effective economical business (operational, commercial & financial) model which
will protect Tamworth’s heritage for future generations.

Secure the future safety & accessibility of the heritage collection & archives to ensure
compliance with Arts Council requirements.

Page 40

Tamworth Borough Council




Page 41

Corporate Plan 2019-2022 (Update 2021) 29



30

Tamuworth

Borough Council

TAMWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL
CORPORATE PLAN 2019-2022 (2021 UPDATE)

CONTACT US

To provide feedback specifically on the form and content of this Corporate Plan update,
email enquiries@tamworth.gov.uk.

For more information about Tamworth Borough Council visit our website: www.tamworth.gov.uk

Tamworth Borough Council
Marmion House

Lichfield Street

Tamworth

B79 7BZ

Email: enquiries@tamworth.gov.uk

Designed and produced by

Tamworth Borough Council,
Marmion House,

Lichfield Street,

Tomworth,

Staffordshire

B79 7BZ

Tel: 01827 709709
Email: enquiries@tamworth.gov.uk
Website: www.tamworth.gov.uk


http://www.tamworth.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Corporate Plan 2019-22 (2021 Update)
	Appendix 1 Corporate Plan 2019-22 (2021 Update)


